

# Meeting Minutes North Hampton Planning Board Tuesday, September 4, 2012 at 6:30pm Town Hall, 231 Atlantic Avenue

These minutes were prepared as a reasonable summary of the essential content of this meeting, not as a transcription.

**Members present:** Shep Kroner, Chair; Laurel Pohl, Vice Chair, Joseph Arena, and Phil Wilson, Select Board Representative.

Members absent: Barbara Kohl, Mike Hornsby, and Tim Harned

Alternates present: Nancy Monaghan

**Others present:** Brian Groth, RPC Circuit Rider, Wendy Chase, Recording Secretary and Kevin Kelley, Building Inspector/ Code Enforcement Officer, who left the meeting at 8:00 pm.

Mr. Kroner convened that meeting at 6:30pm.

Mr. Kroner seated Ms. Monaghan for Mr. Ms. Kohl, and noted for the record that there was a quorum.

Mr. Kroner introduced the newly hired Building Inspector/Code Enforcement Officer, Mr. Kevin Kelley to the Board and Audience.

Mr. Kelley addressed the Board and said that said that in the short time that he has been employed with the Town he has received calls and emails from members of the Boards regarding possible zoning violations. He has been dealing with sign violations and plans to do his best in keeping the Town aesthetically correct.

Dr. Arena commented that he hopes Mr. Kelley plans to stay in North Hampton for a long time.

Mr. Kroner explained to the Board that he met with Mr. Kelley and spoke to him regarding his attendance at Planning Board Meetings. Mr. Kelley will attend Planning Board Meetings that involve highly technical cases only because time spent at the meetings takes him away from time spent in the community.

### I. Old Business

 Case #12:10 – Golden Ks LLC, 63 Atlantic Avenue, North Hampton, NH. The Applicant proposes a 3-lot subdivision by subdividing two (2) residential house lots off from the parent parcel fronting on Chapel Road leaving the commercial property with a single residence on Atlantic Avenue. Property owner: Golden Ks LLC, Guy Marshall, 63 Atlantic Avenue, North Hampton, NH: Property location: 63 Atlantic Avenue and Chapel Road; Tax Map & Lot 005-038; Zoning district: R-2. This Case has been continued from the August 7, 2012 meeting.

The Board was in receipt of a request for a continuance of Case #12:10 to October 2, 2012, from the Applicant's Counsel, Attorney Timothy Phoenix.

Mr. Kroner explained that the Applicant went to the Zoning Board, as suggested by the Planning Board, and received a Variance to Article V, Section 501.2 with conditions, so the Applicant is creating a new plan based on decisions made by the ZBA.

Dr. Arena moved and Mr. Wilson seconded the motion to grant the Applicant's request to continue his case, #12:10, to the October 2, 2012 meeting.

Mr. Wilson said that the continuance is necessary so not to interfere with the Zoning Board Decision's 30 day appeal period.

### The vote was unanimous in favor of the motion (5-0).

2. Case #12:15 – Barr-Moran, Inc., PO Box 1076 North Hampton, NH. Conditional Use Sign Application. The Applicant requests the following waivers: Article V, Section 506.2.K – relief from the width requirement; Article V, Section 506.6.D – relief from the maximum 60 square foot size requirement; Article V, Section 506.6.G – size requirement in districts other than the I-B/R; and Article V, Section 506.6.Q - color. Property owners: David and Suzanne Pope, Trustees, David A. & Suzanne Pope Revocable Trust, PO Box 905, North Hampton, NH; Property location: 16 Ocean Blvd, North Hampton, NH (Beach Plum); M/L 001-035-000; Zoning district: R-2. This Case has been continued from the August 7, 2012 meeting.

### In attendance for this application:

Attorney Craig Salomon, Applicants Counsel Robert Lee, Applicant

Mr. Salomon commended the Town for hiring Kevin Kelley. He said that he has had encounters with Mr. Kelley in Hampton Falls and in Epping and said that he felt Mr. Kelley was a "straight shooter" and will be an asset to the Town of North Hampton.

Mr. Salomon said that the Applicant has secured the Owner's Signature on the Conditional Use Sign Application requested by the Board at the last meeting. He said that he also had Nancy Lee sign as President of the Barr-Moran Corporation.

Mr. Kroner said that at last month's meeting the Board charged him with obtaining an opinion from Legal Counsel regarding Article V, Section 501.2 – expansion on a non-conforming use. Ms. Chase contacted the Local Government Center and they did not provide any information. Mr. Kroner contacted Attorney Matt Serge and his response was that he agreed with the Planning Board's decision that, the way the Ordinance is written, the application is subjective to Section 501.2. He said that whether the lobsters are signs, or whether they are statues, the Board was being asked to differentiate between the two. Attorney Serge said that he was not making a legal writing, he said it is one of those

areas where the Board needs to make the decision it needs to make. He said that the only thing that makes it somewhat of a "gray" area is not so much as the Ordinance is written, but there is a State RSA that speaks to the fact that there is always some level of natural expansion that's allowed in a non-conforming use.

Mr. Kroner said that the Board needs to vote on whether the Applicant needs to seek relief from Article V, Section 501.2 from the Zoning Board of Adjustment.

Mr. Kroner addressed the Applicant's question on how the Planning Board deals with the Zoning Board's administration on the issue of "Conditional Use". Attorney Serge said that he cannot dictate how the Zoning Board will hear a case, but in his opinion he felt that the Zoning Board should essentially focus on the issue at hand, which is signage. He said that he couldn't usurp the authority of the Zoning Board of Adjustment in any case, but that's how he feels is should be addressed.

Mr. Salomon repeated his concern, if the Zoning Board, in its discretion, goes beyond the nay or yea on the expansion issue than it has usurped the Planning Board's power under the Sign Ordinance to make a determination regarding the sign. He said the question for the Board to answer is whether the lobsters are signs or whether they are sculptures.

Mr. Kroner said that the ZBA has the authority to say whether or not the Planning Board can move forward on an application.

Mr. Groth said that the Town's Attorney has given guidance that they should make a decision on the matter as a Board.

Mr. Kroner said that Attorney Serge was saying that the ZBA would not be approving the sign; they would be granting the Applicant the authority to go before the Planning Board for a sign application.

Dr. Arena said that the question is whether or not the proposed sign will have an effect on the business; does the sign need to be there in order for the business to proceed. He said that the lobsters are either considered art, or they are considered signs, and he does not consider them to be art. He said that the Beach Plum is already a well established business and the lobsters do nothing to increase their well established business, or decrease it. He said they are turning that area into a modified, high class "junk yard".

Mr. Wilson said that the two questions are: 1) Can Barr-Moran demonstrate, that they meet the criteria for a variance in seeking the change or to expand a non-conforming use; that's a question for the ZBA. That presupposes that the Planning Board has interpreted Section 501.2 that the action they're proposing on the property is to expand a non-conforming use. The second question is a Planning Board question; does the Planning Board approve the sign application that raised question #1. The Planning Board cannot act on a sign application that expands a non-conforming use without a variance from the ZBA. If the Applicant does meet the criteria for a variance and does not need relief from the ZBA then the Planning Board can adjudicate the sign application according to the Board's normal practices.

Mr. Wilson said that the ZBA can place conditions on their granting of a variance, but does not think they can put conditions on the Conditional Use process. If the Planning Board decides that the Applicant

needs relief from Section 501.2; they are asking the ZBA whether or not they agree that the sign application is an expansion of a non-conforming use, and if they don't agree that it is an expansion, then the Applicant goes before the Planning Board with a Conditional Use Sign application.

142143

Ms. Pohl said that the case presented to the Board is an expansion of a non-conforming use. She said that it is appropriate that the ZBA either grant, or deny, a Variance on it.

144145146

Dr. Arena said that, in this instance, the presence of a sign is going to amount to clutter on an already successful business.

147 148

149 Mr. Kroner said that Attorney Serge was adamant that signs are structures.

150151

152

153

154

Mr. Wilson said that the Board needs to determine whether or not the lobsters are signs. He said if the "Beach Plum" words were removed and the carving was moved onto someone's property other than the Beach plum would it be considered a sign. He said that there is a lobster sculpture in front of the Elementary School that is considered a piece of art. He said that, in his opinion, if the words "Beach Plum" were removed then the Board could reasonably find that the lobsters are statues and not signs.

155156157

158

159

Mr. Kroner said that the lobsters are a key portion of the Beach Plum's entire consumer messaging. He said that the lobsters are on their web site and on their billboards and, in his opinion; it is a part of their attempt in branding their business. He referred to Apple Computer and said that people just look at the apple logo and they know what it is.

160161162

Mr. Wilson questioned if a statue is in front of a business and is used as part of their "branding" does that make it a sign; is it a "trademark" a sign.

163164165

166

167

168

Ms. Pohl said that the criteria used to determine whether or not it is a sign, is where the sign is placed on the property. She asked the applicant if he moved the lobster behind the building would it still be considered a "sign", or would it be considered "art". She said that if the lobster was placed in the back of the property it wouldn't matter if it was "art"; it does matter if it is a "sign"; therefore, in her opinion, she believes the lobsters are signs.

169 170 171

Mr. Groth reminded the Board that what they have before them is an application for a sign.

172173

Mr. Kroner commented that the Zoning Board had made a determination that the sculptures are signs and wasn't sure if the Planning Board has the authority to determine that they are not signs.

174175176

Mr. Wilson said that when the ZBA made that determination the words "beach plum" was on the sculptures. He said that his point was to remove the words.

177178179

180

Ms. Monaghan said that in her opinion the lobsters are clearly signs. She said that there is a difference between a lobster in front of the Library and a lobster holding ice cream cones in front of an ice cream stand that also sells lobster rolls. She said that even with the words removed they are still signs.

181 182

The Applicant, Bob Lee, addressed the Board. He said that it has come up that because the business is successful it is held on a different standard; that they don't need signs. He submitted pictures of area

Disclaimer – these minutes are prepared by the Recording Secretary within five (5) business days as required by NH RSA 91A:2,II. They will not be finalized until approved by majority vote of the Planning Board.

competitors depicting the amount of signage they have (Petey's and Ray's, located in Rye, NH). He said that Barr-Moran pays more taxes than any taxpayer in North Hampton; 9% of all sales go directly to the State of New Hampshire. He said that they are trying to be a good business and are up against very successful competitors. He said that he paid a lot of money for the sculptures; a lot more money than what a sign would cost. He said that the business has been in operation for over sixty (60) years; prior to Zoning. He said that they've had the lobster under the portico for over five (5) years and the larger lobster for just over a year and they will be willing to paint over the words "beach plum". He said that, when in season, they are the highest employer in North Hampton. He said the lobster sculptures bring enjoyment to families. Mr. Lee commented that if the lobsters were signs he would have them placed right up to the roadway.

Ms. Pohl said that the businesses in the pictures are not located in North Hampton and fall under a different Zoning Ordinance. She asked Mr. Lee if he would consider moving the structures in back of the property by the dumpsters. Mr. Lee said he is restricted by the Landlord on where to put things on the property; he agreed to move the large lobster to the picnic table area if the would solve the issue. He said they strive to work well with the Planning and Zoning Boards, to be good neighbors, and keep the property clean.

Ms. Pohl commented that if the Applicant went to the ZBA and allowed them to follow the process he would most likely be granted a waiver.

Mr. Groth said that the message the Applicant received from the ZBA was to go to the Planning Board and apply for a Conditional Use Sign Application.

Mr. Wilson addressed Mr. Lee and said that he believes that everyone is happy for the Beach Plum's success, and appreciates the fact that they employ jobs to young people. He said that, speaking from experience, he knows that the employees learn a lot working there. Mr. Wilson read the definition of Sign, Section 301.31 into the record, *The word "sign" shall mean and include every sign, billboard, ground sign, wall sign, illuminated sign, projecting sign, sandwich board, temporary sign and include any announcement, demonstration, display or any device used in advertising out of doors in view of the general public.* He commented that the "lobster" is on every Beach Plum billboard; he said, in his opinion, the lobsters are signs even with the words "Beach Plum" removed. Mr. Wilson said that Mr. Lee referred to the notion that he wanted to be a "good neighbor" and asked him: Do good neighbors cause safety hazards, traffic and parking issues, trash and pollution problems for their neighbors or make beautiful, natural, public places undesirable for their neighbors? He said he witnessed overflowed trash receptacles at the beach and 80% of the trash was from the Beach Plum.

Mr. Lee said that he has never picked up trash off of the sand on the beach that was from the Beach Plum and didn't think it fair to make such accusations.

Mr. Kroner interrupted and stated he did not want the proceedings to turn in the direction it seemed to be heading.

Mr. Wilson said the he believed that the Applicant inferred that he was lying, and finds it to be unacceptable behavior. He said the he thinks the Board should proceed with deliberations on what action it is going to take without any further interaction from the public.

Disclaimer – these minutes are prepared by the Recording Secretary within five (5) business days as required by NH RSA 91A:2,II. They will not be finalized until approved by majority vote of the Planning Board.

- 231 Mr. Wilson moved and Ms. Pohl seconded the motion to close the floor to comment and deliberate as a Board.
  - The vote was unanimous in favor of the Motion (5-0).

233234

235 Mr. Kroner said that the Board needed to address the issue of Section 501.2.

236237

238

239

240

Mr. Wilson explained that the Board first had to address the waiver requests before deciding whether or not to take jurisdiction of the Application, because if any one of the waivers fails, then the Board cannot take jurisdiction, because the application would be incomplete. He also said that if they vote on whether the Applicant needs to go to the ZBA the Planning Board could adjudicate the application and make it conditioned on the ZBA's findings.

241242

243 Mr. Salomon submitted a copy of the Conditional Use Sign application with the owner's signature into the record.

245 246

**Waiver Request 506.2.K – Monument sign –** The applicant seeks relief from this section because the width at the top of the sculpture is wider than the base of it. Mr. Wilson said that the Board needed to consider whether or not the sculpture is a monument sign.

248249250

247

Mr. Groth said that the relief sought is from a portion of the definition "Monument Sign" to allow the top of the sign to be wider than the base, and said it was up to the Board's discretion.

251252253

- Mr. Kroner referred to NH RSA 674:44 III (e): The Planning Board may only grant a waiver, if the Board finds, by majority vote:
- finds, by majority vote:

  1) Strict conformity would pose an unnecessary hardship to the applicant and waiver would not be contrary to the spirit and intent of the regulations, or
- 2) Specific circumstances relative to the site plan, or conditions of the land in such site plan, indicate that the waiver will properly carry out the spirit and intent of the regulations.

259 260

The Board discussed whether or not it was a monument sign.

261262

263

264

Ms. Pohl said that she believed the purpose of the restriction of the size of the top as compared to the relative size of the bottom is, because somewhere else in the ordinance, it states what monument signs can be, and it's measured at the base, so in keeping with the spirit of the ordinance a waiver to this request would be detrimental.

265266267

Mr. Groth said that he defines the lobsters as monument signs because of the definition of monument sign, a freestanding sign supported primarily by an internal structural framework or integrated into landscaping or other solid structural features other than support poles.

269 270

268

271 Dr. Arena said that if the lobsters are considered "art" than they are not "signs".

272273

- Mr. Wilson moved and Ms. Monaghan seconded the motion that the Board finds that the "lobsters", as presented, are signs.
- 275 The vote was unanimous in favor of the motion (5-0).

276

277 Mr. Wilson moved and Ms. Pohl seconded the motion that the Board finds the signs to be monument 278 signs. 279 The vote passed in favor of the motion (4 in favor, 1 opposed and 0 abstention). Mr. Wilson opposed. 280 281 Mr. Wilson moved and Ms. Pohl seconded the motion to deny the waiver request from Article V, 282 Section 506.2.K – Monument sign. 283 284 Mr. Wilson said that he believes that the intention of the monument sign was to create signs with a 285 base, with flowers or stone; not a base that is narrower than the top. 286 287 Mr. Groth agreed with Mr. Wilson on the intent of the monument sign, but it was the closest thing of 288 what the sculptures actually are under the definitions of the Ordinance. 289 290 The vote passed in favor of the motion (4 in favor, 1 opposed and 0 abstention). Dr. Arena opposed. 291 292 Waiver Request 506.6.D – Relief from the maximum 60 square-feet size requirement of a monument 293 sign. 294 295 The Board determined that a waiver to Article V, Section 506.6.R would be required because the 296 Applicant exceeded the amount of signs allowed on the property. 297 298 Mr. Salomon said that Mr. Groth had mentioned that issue at the last meeting and the Applicant is 299 aware of the issue, but he did not want to file another application without knowing if they would have 300 to go to the Zoning Board. 301 302 Mr. Wilson moved and Ms. Pohl seconded the motion that a waiver to Article V, Section 506.6.R is

Mr. Wilson moved and Ms. Pohl seconded the motion that a waiver to Article V, Section 506.6.R is required, and has not been submitted by the Applicant.

The vote was unanimous in favor of the motion (5-0).

The Board went back to the discussion on the waiver request from Section 506.6.D.

The Board reviewed the diagram of the lobsters submitted with the application. Discussion ensued and the Board determined that the smaller lobster was 17.81 square-feet and the larger lobster was 27.13 square-feet; the total square footage of the two lobster sculptures combined was determined to be 54.26 square-feet.

Mr. Wilson moved and Dr. Arena seconded the motion to accept the Applicant's representation of the square footage of the two lobster signs combined to be 54.26 square-feet. The vote was unanimous in favor of the motion (5-0).

The Board discussed the height and width of the monument signs.

Mr. Wilson moved and Dr. Arena seconded the motion that the Board finds that the waiver to the height requirement is not necessary.

321

303

304

305 306

307 308

309

310

311

312313

314

315

316317

318319

Ms. Pohl disagreed and said that the Board needs an accurate measurement of the signs and that it is not in the Board's best interest to make a determination without knowing the exact height of the signs.

Mr. Wilson said that if the motion fails; the Applicant would have to come back before the Board with the exact measurements.

Dr. Arena withdrew his second and Mr. Wilson withdrew his motion.

Dr. Arena opined that the lobster sculptures do not fit the description of a monument sign; they look more like a piece of art because they have character on all sides, and a monument sign only has it on the front and back.

- Mr. Wilson moved and Ms. Monaghan seconded the motion that before the Board can act on the waiver request it needs an accurate measurement, from the Building Inspector/Code Enforcement Officer of the actual height of the lobster structures.
- 337 The vote was unanimous in favor of the motion (5-0).

339 Waiver request from Article V, Section 506.6.Q – Color

Mr. Wilson moved and Dr. Arena seconded the Board finds that a waiver is not required for the color of the lobster signs.

Ms. Pohl commented that the colors are muted and the lobster color is "barn" red.

346 The vote was unanimous in favor of the motion (5-0).

Waiver request from Article V, Section 506.6.G – signs other than the I-B/R Zoning District –

Mr. Kroner opined that strict conformity to this provision would impose an unnecessary hardship. He said that the provision was not written with the type of lobster sculptures in mind.

Mr. Wilson moved and Dr. Arena seconded the motion to grant the waiver request to Article V, Section with the condition that the Applicant keep the small lobster where it currently exists under the porch roof and to move the larger lobster in the center of the picnic seating area. The vote was unanimous in favor of the motion (5-0).

The Board denied the Waiver Request from Article V, Section 506.2.K – Monument Sign. Mr. Groth explained that if the Board determines the lobster sculptures to be monument signs then they would have to first grant the waiver to Section 506.2.K because the sculptures do not meet the definition of monument signs.

Mr. Salomon said he knows that the Applicant has to come back before the Board to request relief from Article V, Section 506.6.R, and there may be an issue regarding the Zoning Board, but the Board may wish to reconsider its decision on the waiver request from Section 506.2.K, and maybe put a condition on it that the Applicant put a structure around the base of the large lobster.

Dr. Arena said that the Board should revisit the issue of whether or not the lobster sculptures were in fact signs.

Mr. Kroner said that the Zoning Board ruled that the lobster sculptures are signs and the Planning Board does not have the authority, at this stage, to determine that they are not signs. The ZBA has the task of interpretating the Zoning Ordinance.

Mr. Salomon said that the ZBA based their ruling on the lobsters having the words "beach plum" written on them and placed in the location they are currently in. If the words on the carvings were removed and the sculptures were relocated then the Planning Board could make a determination under those conditions, and if anyone disagreed, they would have the 30-day appeal period to do so.

Mr. Wilson moved and Dr. Arena seconded the motion to reconsider the Board's decision that the lobsters are monument signs.

The vote was unanimous in favor of the motion (5-0).

Mr. Groth explained to the Board that in order for the sign to be a monument sign it must meet the definition of monument sign under Section 506.2.K. and the definition of a monument sign is that the base of it is wider than the top, so the applicant needs a waiver to that Section because the large lobster is wider at the top.

Mr. Wilson moved and Ms. Monaghan seconded the motion that if the Applicant continues to display the small lobster structure under the porch roof, and if the Applicant agrees to move the large lobster structure to the center of the outdoor seating area, the Board finds that these structures are not used as signs as defined in the Zoning Ordinance.

Dr. Arena said that he may have used the words "junk yard" earlier, but not in the sense as how people think of "junk yards". He said that after a lot of thought he determined the sculptures to be "art" as per the characteristics of the sides of the sculpture are related to the characteristics on the front and back of the sculpture.

The vote was unanimous in favor of the motion (5-0).

Mr. Wilson moved and Dr. Arena seconded the motion to grant the Conditional Use Sign Permit for the signage as proposed for the Beach Plum based on the fulfillment of the requirements of the waivers that have been granted. The small lobster structure remain under the roof of the porch and the large lobster structure be moved to the center of the outside seating area.

Mr. Kroner said that the Conditional Use permit is for a sign and if the Board determines the sculptures not to be signs; how does that work.

Ms. Monaghan agreed and asked why the Board would vote on a Conditional Use Sign permit for a non-sign.

Dr. Arena withdrew his second and Mr. Wilson withdrew his motion.

Mr. Wilson moved and Dr. Arena seconded the motion that the Board finds that no Conditional Use
Permit is required for the display of the lobster structures on the site of the Applicant's business if the
Applicant agrees to continue to place the small lobster structure under the roof of the porch and
move the large lobster structure to the center of the outdoor seating area on the site.

418 419

The Board agreed that the words "beach plum" on the sculptures does not have to be removed.

420

Ms. Monaghan said that if the Applicant meets the conditions then the lobsters are not signs, but if the Applicant does not meet the conditions, then they are signs.

423

424 Ms. Pohl said that if the Applicant does not meet the Board's conditions then he is in violation of the 425 Zoning Ordinance.

426

427 The vote was unanimous in favor of the motion (5-0).

428

429 Mr. Wilson moved and Ms. Monaghan seconded the motion that if within thirty (30) days the
430 Applicant does not comply with the conditions of the Board's finding, that a Conditional Use Sign
431 Permit is not required of the display of the lobster structures, then the Board finds that the Applicant
432 is out of compliance of the Zoning Ordinance.

433

434 Ms. Pohl made a friendly amendment to include, if the large lobster is not relocated within thirty (30) days.

436

437 Mr. Wilson and Ms. Monaghan accepted the friendly amendment to the motion.

438

439 The vote was unanimous in favor of the motion (5-0).

440

Mr. Salomon mentioned the thirty (30) day appeal period. He suggested the Board increase the thirty (30) day condition to forty-five (45) days.

443

- 444 Ms. Pohl moved and Mr. Wilson seconded the motion to reconsider.
- The vote was unanimous in favor of the motion (5-0).

446

- 447 Mr. Wilson moved and Ms. Pohl seconded the motion to overturn the prior motion.
- The vote was unanimous in favor of the motion (5-0).

449 450

451

452

453

454

455

Mr. Wilson moved and Ms. Pohl seconded the motion that if within sixty (60) days the Applicant does not comply with the conditions of the Board's finding, that a Conditional Use Sign Permit is not required of the display of the lobster structures, then the Board finds that the Applicant is out of compliance of the Zoning Ordinance, and if the Applicant does not relocate the large lobster structure to the seating area within sixty (60) days, then the Board finds the applicant to be in violation of the Zoning Ordinance, and if the Applicant relocates the small lobster on the site, the Board finds the

456 Applicant to be in violation of the Zoning Ordinance.

457 The vote was unanimous in favor of the motion (5-0).

458

459 Mr. Lee apologized to Mr. Wilson for his earlier behavior.

460 Mr. Wilson accepted Mr. Lee's apology.

462 Mr. Kroner called for a five (5) minute recess.

Mr. Kroner reconvened the meeting.

## **II. New Business**

Case #12:16 – Barlo Signs for L.L. Bean, 158 Greeley Street, Hudson, NH 03051. Conditional Use Sign Application. The Applicant requests two (2) internally lighted wall signs 3'6" x 20' consisting of channel letters of 28 square feet each. The Applicant requests the following waivers, (1) Article V, Section 506.5.G. – Internally lighted signs, and (2) Article V, Section 506.6.K – Wall signs, to allow two (2) wall signs exceeding the allowable size and quantity of one (1), 24 square-foot wall sign. Property Owner: W/S North Hampton Properties, LLC, 1330 Boylston Street, Chestnut Hill, MA 02467; Property location: 35 Lafayette Road; M/L 007-052-000; Zoning district I-B/R.

# In attendance for this application:

Tim Sullivan, Barlo Signs, Applicant for L.L. Bean

Mr. Sullivan explained that an L.L. Bean Outlet Store will be moving into the Shaw's plaza at the end unit that was previously occupied by Hollywood Video and the unit occupied by Maurices clothing store. He explained that the combined units have frontage on Lafayette Road and frontage facing the parking lot. They will be the second largest tenant in the plaza. He said that the signs that currently exist in the plaza are internally lighted and the Applicant would like their sign to be in uniform with the rest of the plaza. He said the owner of the plaza would rather have the Applicant use Channel letters rather than a box lit sign.

Mr. Kroner commented that the previous tenant used both fascias to put signs on.

Ms. Monaghan stated that the Corporate L.L. Bean Store in Freeport, Maine is not internally lighted because their ordinance prohibits internally lighted signs. Mr. Sullivan commented that the entire Town of Freeport, Maine has external lighting; his Client just wants to conform with the rest of the Plaza in North Hampton.

Ms. Monaghan said that the purpose of the North Hampton Ordinance is to move toward converting the internally illuminated signs to external lighting. She said that this Board did not allow Staples and other businesses to have internally lighted signs and at some point the Plaza needs to come into compliance, and it seems that L.L. Bean is a good place to start.

Mr. Wilson said that internally lighted signs existing in Town were approved before the current Sign Ordinance was adopted, and the Town is trying to aggressively move toward total compliance regarding externally lighted signs. He said when the Planning Board drafted the Sign Ordinance they used Freeport, Maine's Sign Ordinance as a model.

Mr. Wilson moved and Ms. Pohl seconded the motion to deny the Waiver Request from Article V, Section 506.5.G – Internally lighted signs.

Disclaimer – these minutes are prepared by the Recording Secretary within five (5) business days as required by NH RSA 91A:2,II. They will not be finalized until approved by majority vote of the Planning Board.

547 548

549

500	
507 508	Dr. Arena commented that the amount of light spillage from the letters with the dark green background would be negligible. He said that in terms of light spillage; it will be controlled.
509	
510 511	Mr. Kroner said that the current Sign Ordinance passed overwhelmingly by the Legislative Body and that is what the Board has to work with, if people don't agree with prohibiting internally lighted signs then an
512 513	amendment needs to be drafted and voted on by the townspeople.
514	Mr. Wilson said that the Town also has regulations regarding "dark sky" standards, and whatever
515	fixtures used to light the sign, must meet the "dark sky" standard.
516	incures used to light the sigh, must meet the durk sky standard.
517 518	The vote passed in favor of the motion (4 in favor, 1 opposed and 0 abstention). Dr. Arena opposed.
519	Mr. Wilson moved and Dr. Arena seconded the motion to grant the waiver request from Article V,
520	Section 506.6.K to allow two wall signs; one on the southern elevation of the building, and one on the
521	western elevation of the building.
522	Man Martine and the Otto Beautiful Education at the constitution for the conflict of the Conflict of
523	Mr. Wilson said that the Board should continue to be consistent; they have allowed end units, in the
524	past that did not have a sign on a pole sign, to use both facades for signage.
525	The costs was a single cost in factor of the matical (F.O.)
526	The vote was unanimous in favor of the motion (5-0).
527	Mairon Dogwood from Article V. Section FOC C. W. Well Sign Size
528 529	Waiver Request from Article V, Section 506.6.K – Wall Sign Size
530	Mr. Wilson said that it is hard to act on this waiver if the Applicant is not going to use the sign as
531	proposed because the Board denied the waiver request for internally lighted signs. The Board does not
532	know what alternative they plan to use.
533	know what afternative they plan to use.
534	Mr. Sullivan said that they have a design in mind for external lighting; the gooseneck lighting would
535	come out of the back panel. He explained that the Outlet Stores have a dark green background with
536	white channel letters, and the Retail Stores have green channel letters.
537	white charmer letters, and the netalistores have green charmer letters.
538	Ms. Monaghan said that the white letters with the green background would allow L.L. Bean to keep their
539	"branding" of the outlet store and would not be opposed to it as long as the signs were not internally
540	lighted.
541	
542	Mr. Kroner agreed with Ms. Monaghan.
543	
544	Ms. Pohl commented on the green background panel of the sign. She said that, as it is proposed, it
545	would add to the total square footage of the sign. If the background were to be painted on the wall it
546	would not be included in the square footage of the sign.

Mr. Groth thought the Board calculated the size of signs by putting a bounding area around the letters.

Mr. Wilson read the definition of Wall Sign into the record: A *sign attached to, painted upon, placed*against, or supported by the exterior surface of any building. The Board concluded that the green
background is included in the total square footage of the sign.

Mr. Groth commented that it cannot be a "one size fits all" when dealing with signs because the Board needs to consider the proportions of the façade and how the sign relates to the other surrounding buildings.

Mr. Kroner said that he has no problem with the size of the signs being proposed. He said the site is heavily blocked by other buildings and the sign is a great improvement over all the other signage in the plaza.

Mr. Wilson said that the green background has to be included in the size of the signs and said he would vote in favor of the signs, but not at the proposed size. The total square footage is proposed to be 170 square feet where 24 square feet is allowed.

- Ms. Monaghan moved and Dr. Arena seconded the motion to approve the size of the signs as presented by the Applicant.
- The vote passed in favor of the motion (3 in favor, 2 opposed and 1 abstention). Mr. Wilson and Ms. Pohl opposed.

Mr. Wilson moved and Dr. Arena seconded the motion to approve the Conditional Use Permit for the L.L. Bean Outlet signs provided that they are not internally illuminated ,and the dimensions and colors presented on the drawing submitted with the application are complied with.

Dr. Arena said that the Board should first get an idea on how the Applicant plans to externally light the signs.

Mr. Wilson said that the external lighting will have to comply with the "dark sky" standard.

Dr. Arena commented on internal illumination and said that it makes more sense to be able to control the lighting so that there is the least amount of light spillage. He said that there should be a provision in the Sign Ordinance for internal illumination because what he suggests is the most efficient way of doing it and asked that the Board members support it.

Mr. Kroner would like to form a Sign Ordinance subcommittee and said he would be happy to see Dr. Arena volunteer to Chair it.

The vote was unanimous in favor of the motion (5-0).

**III. Other Business** 

**1. Master Plan Update** – Mr. Kroner reported that the Public Visioning Sessions will be held on Saturday, September 29, 2012 and Saturday, October 6, 2012 from 12:00 p.m. to 3:00 p.m. He said they decided to have them at noon because a lot of residents have young children that play soccer in the morning and

Approved September 18, 2012

619

595 they thought they'd have a better response in the afternoon. He said that they plan on providing light refreshments and will come up with a budget for it. 596 597 598 Mr. Groth said that at the first session they'll begin with an introduction and then Mr. Groth will give a 599 background on the Role of a Vision Chapter and Future Land Use Chapter of the Master Plan; they will 600 then break out into groups to discuss topics on transportation, Land use and design and community services. The seconded Session will reveal the results of the first session and then there will be public 601 602 comments. 603 604 Mr. Groth suggested that the Vision Sessions be recorded by Channel 22; at the very least the second Session should be recorded and televised. 605 606 607 Mr. Groth said that they will need volunteers and will take that up at the next work session. 608 609 Mr. Kroner said that he will try to put out an R.S.V.P. on the "flyers" so they can get an idea of how many people plan on attending. 610 611 612 The Meeting adjourned at 9:55pm without objection. 613 614 Respectfully submitted, 615 616 Wendy V. Chase 617 **Recording Secretary** 618